
SACRE
3.45 pm TUESDAY, 4TH JULY, 2017

CONFERENCE ROOM 3
This Agenda has been prepared by the 

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA
1. Election of Chairperson 

2. Election of Vice Chairperson 

3. Welcome to new Members including an outline of 
the roles and responsibilities of SACRE 

1 - 2

4. Apologies for absence 

5. Declaration of Interests 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

6. Minutes of previous meeting held on 7th March 
2017 at Trelewis Primary School 

3 - 8

7. Matters Arising 

8. Schedule of meetings 2017/2018 
Dates and venues to be confirmed at the meeting:

 Late October / early November 2017
 Late February / early March 2018
 Early June 2018

9. Revised Criteria for GCSE and GCE 
Specifications:  Update 

9 - 10

10. National Curriculum Review and Assessment:  
Update 

11 - 14

11. Estyn Update (Oral Update) 15 - 16

12. WASACRE Issues: 

 Feedback on spring meeting at Usk, 
Monmouthshire  -  3rd March 2017.

 Representation at the summer WASACRE 
meeting at Wrexham  -  7th July 2017.

 Executive Voting for the period 2017  -  
2020 (see pen portraits).

17 - 30

13. Correspondence 

14. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

COMPOSITION: Councillors E Galsworthy, I Thomas

A  Jones, S Bernard Henderson, L McCarthy, H Price, 
J Jones, K Thomas, M Carrington, L Draper, D O'Keefe, 
A Pitt, A Star, Rev. M Prevett, J Brill and Vicky Thomas

together with appropriate officers

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


The Roles and Responsibilities of a SACRE
 (Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education)

Composition of SACRE

The LA is responsible for the composition of SACRE.

SACRE is made up of three groups:
• Representatives of Christian denominations and other religions to reflect 

broadly the proportionate strength of that denomination or religion in the area.
• Associations representing teachers. 
• LA representatives.

 
SACRE may co-opt additional non-voting members in accordance with the 
constitution.

The Role of a SACRE

Advise the LA about RE and Collective Worship
– Meet and monitor statutory requirements 
– how the agreed syllabus for RE is best delivered
– methods of teaching
– resources to be used
– training of teachers

To require the LA to review its agreed syllabus for RE
– legal requirement for every LA to review its agreed syllabus within five years 

of the last review
– Any agreed syllabus “shall reflect the fact that the religious traditions in Great 

Britain are in the main Christian whilst taking account of the teaching and 
practices of the other principal religions represented in Great Britain”

To consider applications from school for determinations
– Determinations are requests to be exempt from “broadly Christian worship”

To consider complaints about the provision and delivery of religious education and 
collective worship

– To play a part in the local statutory complaints procedure where cases are 
referred to SACRE by the LA. 

To publish an Annual Report on its work
– This is to be submitted to DfES in Welsh Government by 31st December of 

each year. 

The responsibilities of the LA in respect of SACRE

• Establish and fund a SACRE
• Appoint members to SACRE and the Agreed Syllabus Conference
• Determine and provide the advice and support required by SACRE
• Inform SACRE on matters relating to religious education and collective 

worship
• Provide information on school inspection and / or self-evaluation reports

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



• Respond to advice offered by SACRE
• Constitute and facilitate an agreed syllabus conference when required by 

SACRE
• Notify the Minister for Education when a new syllabus is agreed
• Consider curriculum complaints on RE and Collective Worship

Acronyms

SACRE  -   (Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education)

WASACRE  -  (Wales Association of SACREs)

DfES  -  (Department for Education and Skills)

Estyn  -  (The Schools Inspection Service for Wales)

NAPfRE  -  (National Advisory Panel for Religious Education)

Page 2



MINUTES OF MEETING

SACRE MEETING

TUESDAY, 7TH MARCH, 2017

PRESENT: Councillor E Galsworthy (In the Chair)

Councillor K Moran

Professional Associations:

A Jones, H Price and L Draper 

Faith Communities:

D O’Keefe, A Pitt and Reverend M Prevett

Local Authority Representative:

V Thomas

Mair Morgan (Democratic Services)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

889  Welcome and 
presentation from 
Trelewis Primary 
School

The Committee were welcomed by Mrs Helen Price to 
Trelewis Community School.

Helen Price then made a Presentation to the Committee on 
‘What does RE look like in Trelewis Community Schools’ 
giving details of the following:

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



 Number of Pupils in the School
 Attendance at Places of Worship
 Links with the Church in Treharris
 School Assemblies
 Scheme of Works – Agreed Syllabus
 Way Forward:
 Review and Restock of Artefacts
 Review of Staff Timetables for Teaching RE
 Visits to a Synagogue or Temple
 Examples of Pupils Work 

Vicky Thomas advised that flyers were currently being 
prepared for circulation to schools giving links to access 
materials in relation to the Foundation Phase and that this 
was a free resource.  She would circulate information to 
schools.

Vicky Thomas also referred to support and links between 
schools especially with their partner secondary schools.  
The partner secondary school present agreed that they 
could be contacted for loan of artefacts etc.
  
A Member enquired if any free transport was available from 
local Organisations for school visits e.g Places of Worship.

A Committee Member advised that they would make 
enquiries on this matter and report back to the next 
Committee Meeting.

890  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor G 
Lewis, Sian Bernard Henderson, Lee-anne McCarthy, Katy 
Thomas, Ann Star and Sarah Bowen.

Councillor K Moran advised that she would have to leave 
the Meeting early to attend a School Governors Meeting.

891  Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made.

892  Minutes of last meeting 
on the 1st November 
2016

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Meeting held 1 November 2016 be 
accepted as a correct record.

893  Matters Arising Arising on Minute No 585 - Monitoring Visit –Twynyrodyn 
Primary School Vicky Thomas referred the Committee to 
Agenda Item 13 and the letter received from ESTYN in 
relation to this matter.  The school had been informed and 
Vicky Thomas had responded to Estyn.

Arising on Minute No 587 – SACRE Annual Report the 
Committee were advised that the report had been 
circulated.

The letter in relation to Schools Statutory requirements for 
Religious Education had also been sent to all Schools 
within the County Borough.

Page 4



Arising on Minute No 594 – Holocaust Memorial Day 2017 
and update was received by the Committee detailing how 
Afon Taf High School had participated in the day.

Reverend Mark Prevett also shared with the Committee the 
Service that had been held on this day.

Reverend Prevett also advised the Committee of the 
Holocaust Memorial Garden that had been created at the 
rear of the Central Library.

Vicky Thomas advised that it would be good for Schools to 
be made aware of the Garden.

A Member advised that they would raise this issue with the 
Communications Team at the Authority.

Vicky Thomas also advised that she would raise the issue 
with Sarah Bowen to share with Schools. 

894  Analysis of 
examination results 
2016 (See Appendix)

Vicky Thomas referred the Committee in detail to the 
‘Analysis of Examination Results 2016’ report and also 
circulated the Merthyr Tydfil Examination Data in relation to 
GCSE and GCSE Short Course.

Resolved that:

(a) The Examination Results 2016 be noted
(b) The findings be circulated to Secondary Schools in 

the Authority

895  KS3 Levels Data 2015 
and 2016

Vicky Thomas led the Committee in detail through the ‘Key 
Stage 3: Year 9 Religious Education Levels 2015 and 2016’ 
report.

Resolved that:

The report and data be noted and the findings be circulated 
to Secondary Schools.

896  Examinations 
Specifications / GCSE 
Support Programme

Vicky Thomas referred the Committee in detail to the 
‘GCSE Consortia Arrangements / Specifications’ report.

Vicky Thomas also referred to Curriculum Lead 
Practitioners for RE and recommended that a Lead 
Practitioner be invited to attend the Summer Committee 
Meeting.

Vicky Thomas then referred to the Network Meetings and 
as some teacher Members said they were unaware of these 
she advised that she would supply contact details if 
Secondary School Teachers wished to attend.

Resolved that:

(a) The developments relating to the support for 
schools with the revised specifications for GCSE be 
noted

(b) The Curriculum Lead(s) be invited to attend the 

Page 5



Summer Committee Meeting to address the 
Committee on their work

(c) Vicky Thomas to inform schools of the dates of the 
Network Meetings and their Lead Practitioners for 
GCSE contact details

897  National Curriculum 
Review and 
Assessment:  Update

Vicky Thomas referred the Committee in detail to the 
‘National Curriculum Review Update’ report and the 
Curriculum for Wales Newsletter.

Resolved that:

The developments relating to the position of RE in the 
curriculum be noted.

Councillor K Moran left the Meeting at 5.00pm.

898  Estyn Annual Remit 
2017/18

Vicky Thomas referred the Committee in detail to ‘The 
Annual Estyn Remit 2017/18’ report.

Resolved that:

The report be noted.

899  Holocaust Memorial 
Day 2017:  Feedback  
-  SACRE Members

This Item had been considered previously in the Meeting 
under Matters Arising.

900  WASACRE Issues: Vicky Thomas referred the Committee to the Minutes of the 
WASACRE Meeting held 18 November 2016.

Vicky Thomas also referred the Committee to future 
WASACRE Meeting dates and advised that up to four 
Members of the SACRE were able to attend the WASACRE 
Meetings and requested that if a Committee Member was 
interested in attending a WASACRE Meeting to advise the 
SACRE at the next Committee Meeting.

The Chair Councillor E C Galsworthy then advised that he 
would attend the WASACRE Meeting in Wrexham in the 
Summer 2017 together with Vicky Thomas if possible.

Vicky Thomas then referred the Committee to the report on 
‘Executive Voting’ and the vacant position of WASACRE 
Vice-Chair and advised the Committee that a nomination 
could be made by the Committee for this position and 
explained the nomination process.

Councillor E C Galsworthy advised that he would like to put 
himself forward for the position of Vice-Chair on the 
WASACRE but was mindful of the forthcoming Local 
Government Elections.

Resolved that:

Councillor E C Galsworthy be nominated for the vacant 
position of Vice-Chair on the WASACRE and that this 
nomination be endorsed by the SACRE Committee.

Page 6



901  Correspondence This item had been considered earlier in the Meeting under 
Matters Arising.

902  Any other item deemed 
urgent by the Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

DATE:          JULY 4TH 2017

REPORT TO:          STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
         EDUCATION

PURPOSE:           REVISED CRITERIA FOR RS SPECIFICATIONS 

Background 

There are now two Curriculum Lead Practitioners for RE to provide support for non-core WJEC GCSE 
subjects first teaching September 2017

 Catherine Rees, Pencoed Comprehensive School
 Lisa James, Cardiff High School

They will be working with the ERW practitioners along with those in EAS and GWE. One of the roles of 
the Hub lead will be to run HODs network meetings to share good practice and develop an 
understanding of the new specifications. 

A subject leader network meeting was held on January 26th to look at developing collaboration 
between schools for the new specification. 

A subject leader network meeting is being held on June 8th 2017

The lead practitioners are also developing resources for the new GCSE which will be shared via hwb.

Recommendation 

SACRE to note and discuss the developments relating to the support for schools with the revised 
specifications for GCSE 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

DATE:          JULY 4th 2017

REPORT TO:          STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
         EDUCATION

PURPOSE:              UPDATE ON NATIONAL CURRICULUM REVIEW 

Background

Professor Donaldson report and recommendations in Successful Futures was that 

Religious education should form part of the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience, and should 
remain a statutory curriculum requirement from reception.

In October 2015 ‘A curriculum for Wales – a curriculum for life’ document outlined the plan for taking 
forward Professor Donaldson’s recommendations

The timeline and process has been as follows:

Step 1:  Representatives to attend induction events. 

Step 2: Representatives from the pioneer schools will work within areas of learning and experience 
(ALE) in order to consider the ‘big questions’ of curriculum development, e.g. what is the scope of each 
ALE?  What are the connections between ALEs? 

Step 3: Representatives from the pioneer schools will consider the strands within each area of learning 
and experience.   

Manon Jones is responsible for the pioneer schools and two areas of learning and experience (ALE), 
Humanities and Language and Literacy.  

Meetings with Welsh Government Spring Term 2017 - Update

2/3/17 – WASACRE meeting with Cabinet Secretary Kirsty Williams 
Executive members met with the Minister, Kirsty Williams.  The status of the Agreed Syllabus was 
discussed and reference made to schools who may not be meeting statutory requirements. The 
Minister asked for evidence that schools are not complying with statutory requirements. The Minister 
stated that schools should be meeting higher standards and was adamant, therefore, that all schools 
must follow the Agreed Syllabus. If they did not they could not meet those required standards. 

27/3/17 – RE Planning Meeting with Welsh Government Officials 
Welsh Government representatives plus Edward Evans, Vicky Thomas (WASACRE) Mary Parry, Paula 
Webber (NApfRE) Michelle Gosney Estyn

Item:  Relationship between the locally agreed syllabus, the statutory requirements and the new 
curriculum framework
A brief background into agreed syllabus development was provided and reference made to 
problems that have arisen in the past with the Foundation Phase document. Agreed syllabuses 
and SACREs would still have a role to play with WG enquiring about the time frame and process 
for an agreed syllabus Conference.

Page 11

Agenda Item 10



Action
 WG to investigate what happened with the Foundation Phase during the last curriculum 

review in order to try to avoid the same thing happening this time.

Item: Working together to develop the RE aspect of the Humanities Area of Learning and 
Experience
A draft timeline for the development of the AOLEs was provided by MJ. It was agreed that 
greater involvement was necessary with SACREs and WASACRE in the development of the 
new curriculum.

Action
 2-3 representatives from NAPfRE/WASACRE to attend Pioneer group workshop on 2nd and 

3rd May to contribute to discussions about the group’s proposals regarding the scope and 
structure of the Humanities from an RE perspective. (MP, GV, BJ)

 WG to explore the commissioning of a short paper from NAPfRE/WASACRE in relation to 
the key concepts within Religious Education to assist with the curriculum development 
work.      

 WG would like WASACRE and NAPfRE to share meeting dates for 2017-2018 so that a 
timeline for regular meetings can be put in place.

 Curriculum developments will be shared via a newsletter to SACREs which will be sent from 
WG to SACRE clerks. SACREs will be able to then respond to the Newsletter by email to 
Manon Jones. Paula Webber as Secretary to WASACRE is to be copied into responses.

Item:  Matters to consider which may impact the curriculum reform process

 RE for Nursery children
Would legislation be amended as currently RE was statutory from reception onwards, whereas 
Successful Futures covers the age range from 3 to 16/ It was confirmed that Welsh 
Government had not yet legislated on this area and that there was not to be a separate case 
for RE. 

 Post 16 Religious Education
It was agreed that the issue of delivery at Post 16 required further consideration and 
discussion.

 Managing withdrawal from RE
Reference was made to issues surrounding withdrawal (for example parents partially 
withdrawing their children from RE – lack of clarity for parents on the content of RE) and that 
there was the need to clearly identify RE within the new curriculum framework. It was agreed 
that the WASACRE paper on withdrawal from RE to be shared with WG and that RE would 
need to be clearly identified in the new curriculum framework to allow learners to be 
withdrawn. 

 Relationship between the new curriculum framework and qualifications
Concerns were raised that the new Religious Studies GCSE appeared to be at odds with the 
proposals contained within Successful Futures.  This has been raised by WASACRE with 
Qualifications Wales but there has been no response received. Discussion arose around the 
feasibility to introduce another qualification (similar to the current ‘spec B’ short course in RS) 
so that statutory RE at Key Stage 4 could be accredited.  

Page 12



Welsh government confirmed that the Cabinet Secretary’s view on this area was quite clear 
that the nature and content of qualifications was in the hands of the Qualifications Wales as 
the regulator in Wales.  The lack of response from Qualifications Wales to the correspondence 
from WASACRE would be followed up. Also it was confirmed that Welsh Government were 
working with Qualifications Wales during the curriculum development process to ensure that 
future qualifications align with the new curriculum. .       

Next Steps
Date of the next meeting 17th July 2017

12/4/17 - Stakeholders meeting
Stakeholders raised some issues for discussion e.g. whether there would be a change of name for RE   
-  There was no answer given to this question as no decisions have been made; consideration should 
be given to consistency of approach between the different AOLE groups: issues of progression from 
KS3 to KS4.

2/5/17 – AOLE Planning Meeting (MP& BJ attended)
Purpose of meeting 

 Agree on a ‘statement’ showing how the ALE promotes the 4 purposes
 Outline the compass of the ALE – not only Geography, History and RE
 Discuss the best way of presenting the range of subjects
 Discuss the level of detail that should be included for the ALE
 Prepare a report that can be presented to a Curriculum Panel (chaired by Prof GD) on behalf of 

the ALE on 23.05.17

Background reading: 
Other curricula:  
References were made during the day to the background reading undertaken by members of the 
Humanities ALE group.  Members mentioned that they have explored the curriculum documents of:  
Scotland, New Zealand, British Columbia, Singapore.  

Working with Big Ideas in Science Education (ed. Wynne Harlen et al).  
It was suggested that the various disciplines within the Humanities ALE should identify the Big Ideas 
that are pertinent to each discipline. 

Curriculum for Excellence:  A brilliant idea but…(Mark Priestley and SarahMinty)
This is an early evaluation of the impact of the Scottish Curriculum of Excellence.  The Humanities 
AOLE teachers were asked to reflect on this article and discuss a series of questions.

Approaches to specifying curriculum areas of learning (Mark Priestley)
WG have commissioned Mark Priestley to write this paper.  The Humanities AOLE teachers were 
asked to reflect on this article and discuss a series of questions

The Welsh Curriculum Review:  Developing a Curriculum Framework (Eleanor Rawling)
WG have commissioned Eleanor Rawling to write this paper and she was present at the meeting to 
outline her recommendations.  She argued that each discipline should identify the big ideas, concepts, 
skills and processes which were essential to a subject or which define the subject.  She asks teachers 
to identify the ‘fundamentals’, the ‘core’, the ‘key’ aspects or even the ‘minimum’.  Teachers should be 
given curriculum planning criteria as guidance on how to use the big ideas, skills, processes to develop 
a meaningful curriculum.  There should be a national required content outline for the periods between 
the progression steps in order to ensure some consistency, but that schools should further develop 
content which was relevant to their locality and school context It would help the ‘builders’ (the ALE 
teachers?) to identify ‘overlaps’ in content, skills and processes.  She exemplified her thinking further by 
outlining what geography was useful/important for a 11 year old/14 year old/16 year old.  This detail 
would also have to promote the 4 Purposes.  

Page 13



Further information:
 Teachers were asked to form subject groups in order to identify one big idea which could be 

developed like the Science ‘Big Ideas’.  

 References were made to the CAMAU group which would be responsible for mapping the 
progression steps and assessment strategies.   

 It’s likely that external subject experts/academics will undertake some of the responsibilities for 
writing the ‘subject’ detail of the new curriculum.MJ suggested that WASACRE could be 
commissioned to write a paper. 

 The Humanities group will meet again on the 6 June 2017.  This will be the last meeting for this 
academic year.

ACTION POINTS for WASACRE and NAPfRE members.

 What are the big ideas of Religious Education? Can we identify the ‘minimum’ Big Ideas, skills, 
processes and criteria for selecting components of an RE curriculum? It would be useful to 
submit some statements similar to the ones noted for Science and exemplify them to show the 
progression of knowledge and understanding from FP to 16+.

 

Page 14



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

DATE:          JULY 4th 2017

REPORT TO:          STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

PURPOSE:              ESTYN UPDATE
____________________________________________________________________________________

Date: Monday 5th June 2.00pm – 3.30pm. 

Venue: Estyn Offices, Anchor Court, Keen Road, Cardiff, CF24 5JW.

Attendees: Vicky Thomas, Mary Parry and Gill Vaisey will attend on behalf of WASACRE/NAPfRE.  
Meilyr Rowlands HMCI, Claire Morgan, Strategic Director and Mark Campion, HM 
Inspector will represent Estyn. 

Proposed Agenda Items

1. The thematic review of Religious Education at KS2-KS3. 

2. Current inspection of RE – Meeting statutory requirements according to an agreed syllabus for 
Religious Education. 

3. KS4 RE.

4. The new Estyn Inspection Framework from September 2017 and RE.

Page 15

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Cyfarfod Cymdeithas CYSAG au Cymru, yn Sir Fynwy Swyddfeydd y 
Cyngor, Neuadd y Sir, Rhadyr, Brynbuga. 3 Mawrth 2017 (10.30am – 3pm)
Wales Association of SACREs meeting, at the Monmouthshire County 
Council Offices, County Hall, Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA. 3 March 2017  
(10.30am – 3pm)

Attendance

Ynys Môn / Anglesey
Bethan James
Rheinallt Thomas

Blaenau Gwent
Gill Vaisey
Soam Sharma
Chris Abbas
Mal Jilani

Pen-y-bontar Ogwr / 
Bridgend
Edward Evans
Vicky Thomas

Caerffili/ Caerphilly
Enfys Hawthorn
Janet Jones
Vicky Thomas

Caerdydd / Cardiff
Gill Vaisey

Sir Gaerfyrddin / 
Carmarthenshire
Mary Parry

Ceredigion

Conwy
Phil Lord
Nicholas Richter

Sir Ddinbych / Denbighshire
Phil Lord

Sir y Fflint / Flintshire
Phil Lord

Gwynedd
Bethan James

Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr 
Tydfil
Vicky Thomas
Ernie Galsworthy

Sir Fynwy / Monmouthshire
Gill Vaisey
Val Howells
Peter Jarvis
Kath Fitter
N Baicher
Tudor Thomas
Bob Cotterell
Sue Cave
Liz Hackett-Pain

Castell-nedd Port Talbot /
Neath and Port Talbot

Casnewydd / Newport
Huw Stephens
N Baicher
Sally Northcott
Vicky Thomas

Sir Benfro /
Pembrokeshire
Mary Parry
Huw George

Powys
John Mitson
Margaret Evitts

Rhondda Cynon Taf
Paula Webber
Mathew Maidment

Abertawe / Swansea
Vicky Thomas

Torfaen /Torfaen
Marilyn Frazer
Kenneth Jacob
Vicky Thomas

Bro Morgannwg /
Vale of Glamorgan
Paula Webber
Dafyd Trehearne
R. Delpak

Wrecsam / Wrexham
Libby Jones
Tania ap Sion

Sylwedyddion /
Observers
Simon Oram
Clare Cooper
Sharon-Perry Phillips
Tudor Thomas (REMW)
Andrew Jones (Caldicot School)
Fr Bernard Sixtus (Catholic 
Archdiocese of Cardiff)
Pauline Smith (Welsh 
Government)
Manon Jones (Welsh 
Government)

Page 17

Agenda Item 12



Minutes 

1. Cyflwyniad a chroeso /Introduction and welcome 

The Chair of WASACRE, Phil Lord (PL), thanked Cantref and Shirenewtonschool choirs for the excellent 
entertainment provided. He welcomed members to the Council Chamber at Usk, Monmouthshire. 
Monmouthshire SACRE representatives were available to talk to members during the day. 

Thanking WASACRE for choosing the venue, Cllr. Jim Higginson welcomed members to the Chamber 
saying that at Monmouthshire County Council Religious Education is never underestimated or undervalued. 
Members were also welcomed by Chair of Monmouthshire SACRE, Liz Hackett-Payne, who expressed 
thanks to all who had organised the day. She told members it is a privilege to act as Chair to Monmouthshire 
SACRE, which works on the premise of complete inclusivity. She recognized that the SACRE thrives as a 
result of the dedication of faith representatives, who bring a valid and respected perspective to SACRE. She 
acknowledged teacher reps, fully supportive councillors and other members who bring academic expertise. 
Liz spoke of the positive nature of the SACRE in carrying out their duty to monitor RE in schools. The 
SACRE organises an RE event, including workshops, to help the transition between primary and secondary 
schools. This enhances the ability of children to understand many faiths. Additionally, the SACRE has 
received presentations from teachers and pupils who made school visits to Auschwitz and to Jerusalem. Liz 
believes SACRE is a force of positivity and inclusivity and stated that, with twenty-two SACREs working 
together, WASACRE has a very important role in RE. She encouraged WASACRE to ensure that the roles of 
SACREs are not eroded and that SACRE’s statutory duties remain foremost in the eyes of the local authority 
and Welsh Government. 

2. Adfyfyriotawel / Quiet reflection 

PL showed a YouTube film (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=BQbeWFxsRp0) about the importance of St 
David’s Day from Little Milly aged 4. He also spoke aboutShrovetide and Lent, reflecting on how 
community celebrations are connected to the past, which is an important aspect of Religious Education. 

3. Ymddiheuriadau / Apologies 

Apologies received from Andrew Pearce, Cllr Lyndon Lloyd, Alwen Roberts, Mark Campion, Cllr Mary 
Barnett, Helen Gibbon, Rachel Bendell, Alison Lewis, Shè-zèr Kandro, Meinir Wynne Loader. 

4. Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwydyng Nghaerfyrddin, 18 Tachwedd 2016 / Minutes of meeting held in 
Carmarthen, 18 November 2016 

The minutes were accepted as a true record of the meeting. Proposed by RheinalltThomas (RT) and seconded 
by Gill Vaisey (GV). 

5. Materionyncodi / Matters arising 

P3. The work collating REMW RE Ideas continues to be a work in progress. 

P3. Humanist attendance – The guidance document Welsh Office Circular10/94 is restrictive; however the 
guidance stands until it is changed. GV told WASACRE members that Kathy Riddick has sent a new book 
What is Humanism? written by Michael Rosen and Annemarie Young for KS2 and KS3 3 pupils. Kathy said 
she would like to have been present at the meeting but was unaware about it until recently. 

P3. WASACRE has received a response from Welsh Government regarding the status of the agreed syllabus. 

P.4. Executive members have met with the Minister, Kirsty Williams. The status of the Agreed Syllabus was 
discussed and the Minister asked for evidence that schools are not complying. Members discussed whether 
SACREs can produce evidence that statutory requirements are not being met. Members acknowledged that 

Page 18



there is a procedure to follow if schools are found not to be meeting their statutory requirement for RE and 
that SACREs should try to resolve the problem in the first instance. GV was heartened by the Minister’s 
response, as she stated that schools should be meeting higher standards and was adamant, therefore, that all 
schools must follow the Agreed Syllabus. If they did not they could not meet those required standards. GV 
reported that the Minister was very strong in backing WASACRE on this issue. 

P. 5. The presentation from lead practitioners will go ahead in Wrexham 

P. 7.PL attended the EFTRE Executive meeting. He visited a variety of schools and had the opportunity to 
stay with a family in Finland. There will be a presentation/summary in Wrexham. 

P.8. Item 9. Edward wrote to the Minister. Statutory requirements are devolved.MP said Westminster can 
pass legislation and Welsh Government decides whether Wales accepts or rejects legislation. There are no 
powers retained by Westminster that apply to just education. This concurs with the fact that the REC 
Commission only applies in England. Wales is a legislative power, but Human Rights and other areas of law 
are not devolved. So when making decisions Welsh government have to ask whether this is solely education 
or does it include things that are not devolved matters. 

Action: Thanks will be written to Kirsty Williams for a swift reply – EE. 

P.10. Date of the summer meeting in Wrexham is Friday 7th July in the Council Chamber. 

6. CyflwyniadNAPfRE / NAPfRE presentation: 

Cyfoethogi'r cwricwlwm modern - o safbwynt ysgol arloesi / Enriching the modern curriculum – from 
a pioneer school perspective –Owain ap Dafydd Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni 

Owain ap DafyddYsgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni gave a presentation on the Donaldson Report/Successful 
Futures. Cwm Rhymni, the only Welsh medium school in Caerphilly, will have over 2000 pupils within 5 
years. They see themselves along with the feeder primaries as part of a ‘family of schools’. When children 
start primary school they belong to Cwm Rhymni. Pupil progress is at the heart of the school. The school has 
responded to Successful Futures/the Donaldson Report. The school has taken on board Successful Futures 
and the 4 Purposes are already being adopted by the school. The main focus at the school is on pedagogy, 
leadership and collaboration. Literacy is at the heart of everything. When lesson observations take place they 
look at whether the 4 Purposes are met. Specialists in secondary school are working with primary schools to 
develop the curriculum. The school has introduced Leaders of Pedagogy (LOP). Subject leaders are also 
responsible for developing staff. The school employs a Senior Leader of Pedagogy on TLR1. LOPs will be 
leading the six areas of the new curriculum. Cluster work is essential. They support primary schools and 
advise on subject specialisation. They also worked with Ysgol Llanharia Foundation unit KS2 and KS3 
looking at pedagogy. The school takes time to reflect 4 and improve and are developing consistency in a 3-16 
curriculum. Transition is a key in Successful Futures. Teachers visit primary schools on a regular basis to get 
to know the children individually. Curriculum development was seen as a way forward in developing the 
confidence and wellbeing of pupils. Cross curricular events are fundamental in Ysgol Cwm Rhymni. The 
Head talked about being in the Aberfan area and marking this history in cross curricular activities in a similar 
way they have marked the history of the Holocaust. The RE department is very important in this cross 
curricular approach. Welsh Bacc is also seen as fundamental to the development of the curriculum. Ysgol 
Cwm Rhymni now teaches RE through the Welsh Language Curriculum. Owain said that rather than the 
usual one hour per week, as a result of this change RE now gets four hours per week. He reported that Estyn 
were happy with the provision. The co-ordinator of RE works very closely with the Welsh department. In 
Owain’s opinion, resources for RE are better with this approach as the Welsh department have helped to 
develop the resources. This, he maintains, brings out a better understanding from the language. The 
consistency and quality of the Welsh has improved and the quality of RE has improved as a result of the 
improved status of the teachers teaching RE. RE is compulsory subject in Donaldson in the Humanities 
AoLE. The headteacher believes that the 4 Purposes fit in ideally with RE. RE is more than just another 
subject it is contributes to wellbeing. He said that in an area where deprivation is high and people have 

Page 19



significant concerns about perceived migration in the valleys of Wales, RE is developing respect and 
understanding. 

PL thanked Owain for providing an understanding of what is happening across the school. During questions 
a member said that the Head had talked about KS3 having to meet the requirements of the Agreed Syllabus. 
But what happens at KS4? Owain said that a Cross curricular approach is taken. RE has been taught by 
people who are not subject specialists in the school. Sometimes through cross curricular days but that the 
school has covered Agreed Syllabus and that this has been recognised by Estyn. Welsh Bacc is also being 
used to teach RE. He said that the school did not go down the short course route, but GCSE and A Level 
Religious Studies are popular options. Huw Stevens (HS) asked how much time was being given to History 
and Geog. Owain said that they continue to have one hour per week. He reiterated that he believed that RE 
has improved through teaching in first language Welsh lessons. A question was asked about the quality of 
teachers applying at the school. Owain said that to produce good students we need good teachers and that 
they don’t have a shortage of people applying at Cwm Rhymni. Once appointed, they are given the 
opportunity to develop. In answer to another question Owain confirmed that RE is the only subject to be 
taught through first language Welsh lessons, but that some RE was also taught during registration period and 
through the Welsh Baccalaureate. Discussions followed with a clear message that WASACRE members 
didn’t think that teaching RE through registration periods could be considered as good practice. 

7. Cyflwyniad WASACRE/WASACRE presentation: 

Gwaith y rhwydwaith ysgolion arloesi a'r MDAPh Dyniaethau/Work of the pioneer school network and the 
Humanities AOLE - Manon Jones 

PL introduced Manon Jones to WASACRE. He informed members that WASACRE are now meeting with 
Welsh Government on a regular basis. 

Manon Jones brought WASACRE up to date on the current progress of the new curriculum with particular 
reference to the Humanities AOLE. Successful Futures was published two years ago and 5 Manon considered 
that the heart of the new curriculum is to encourage young people to develop as full members of society and 
that this is reflected in the 4 Purposes. Manon reported that the recommendation is that RE continues to be a 
statutory requirement. Welsh Government have published a document A curriculum for Wales, a Curriculum 
for Life (http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculuminwales/curriculum-for-wales-
curriculum-for-life/?lang=en ). Manon’s presentation summarised some of the main points within this 
document which will bring fundamental changes to the Education system in Wales. The curriculum will be 
fully implemented in 2021. There will be a robust accountability system throughout the development of the 
curriculum. The pioneer network was set up in 2015. Digital Competence is one area of the curriculum that 
has already been developed. In 2017 there will be practical support for the professional teaching pioneers 
who are developing the new curriculum. Welsh Government is looking at ways to prepare the practitioners 
for the new curriculum and have developed a network of schools across Wales so that there is proper 
representation. There will be a collaborative approach to the development of the AoLE. Pioneers will identify 
what is working at the moment, share and provide feedback. This will be an inclusive approach with 
practitioners leading the work. They will be working with experts from Wales and the world. Welsh 
Government, Estyn, Qualifications Wales and other stakeholders are partners in the development of the new 
curriculum. Welsh Government is also seeking to develop a partnership with WASACRE which they see as 
vital now that the focus of the work is to develop the humanities part of the curriculum. Manon voiced her 
appreciation of the advice and support she has received from WASACRE. Manon informed WASACRE that 
enriching experiences will be a focus across the whole curriculum and that work has already started on the 
AoLE. Questions will be asked such as, what do we mean by Humanities? What are the links to other AoLE? 
The next step will be to develop the detail working groups looking at cross curricular approaches, enrichment 
and experiences, the Welsh dimension, wider skills and assessment and progression. These groups have 
published reports which are available online. The new curriculum is meant to be holistic. The group 
developing humanities has met once. Welsh Government recognises the importance of working together. 
Welsh Government wants to build strong foundations. They recognise that WASACRE has a body of 
expertise and they have asked WASACRE to share in this process. Members from WASACRE and NAPfRE 

Page 20



will meet with Welsh Government at the end of the month (add the date). Welsh Government are looking at 
how they can engage with various SACREs to look specifically at RE. Their aim is to have a good working 
relationship from the start. Manon stated that Welsh Government needs to know the RE issues from the very 
beginning. 

Questions following the presentation included: 

“I assume the intention that the humanities will work together?” – Manon said that Humanities will be 
looked at in a holistic way but that it was the intention that but the individual disciplines will remain. They 
will also be making the links with the AoLE as the new curriculum will be a holistic framework. 

A member asked how SACREs can ensure how the Agreed Syllabus is being met. Members expressed 
concern that they are hearing that already some schools think that they do not have to follow the Agreed 
Syllabus. VT said that the SACREs she represents have already sent out letters to schools reiterating the 
statutory nature of the agreed syllabus along with a proforma for schools to fill in to show where they are 
meeting these legal requirements. 

The following points were raised in a lively discussion that took place following lunch: 6 

 It is important that the Agreed Syllabus is adhered to during the next few years while the 4 Purposes 
are being developed within Humanities. The Status of RE remains statutory and schools should be 
delivering RE according to the Agreed Syllabus. 

 Concern that Estyn current reports do not demonstrate good practice in RE. Members were concerned 
that during the inspections Estyn may perhaps see paperwork, but not the RE itself. Estyn may not, 
therefore, report when schools are not complying with Agreed Syllabuses. 

 Members expressed concern that teaching RE via other subjects could potentially be ‘killing RE’.For 
any subject to be delivered during registration, for example, is not appropriate. Non-specialist 
teaching in RE may be seen as a disservice. Specialist RE teachers are needed to teach RE effectively 
and sometimes schools are using a cross-curricular approach as a money saving exercise. If a school 
values subject teachers they should be investing in RE. If headteachers begin to see this approach as 
good practice, it could potentially undermine the principles of Donaldson. Manon Jones said that in 
designing the new curriculum there is a need for Quality Assurance to ensure that this is not the case. 
From 2018 there documents will be available stating how RE should and could be delivered. 

 The ‘What is good RE?’ document will be considered in designing the new curriculum. We need to 
make sure that, if RE is to be delivered through the humanities curriculum in the future, this is good 
RE. 

 The issue of non-compliance has raised for the last 18 months as SACREs have been receiving 
anecdotal evidence of a there being a view in some schools that the Agreed Syllabus doesn’t have to 
be adhered to. Some members would like to have received a statement from the Minister confirming 
the status of RE. In some SACREs letters have already gone out to all schools reminding them of the 
statutory nature of RE. 

 It was pointed out that, whilst RE can be delivered in a number of ways as long as the Agreed 
Syllabus is adhered to, there is concern about the workload of Heads of Department for RE in 
approaches where they would be required to provide resources for non specialist teachers. 

 Manon Jones was asked who would determine the best model in the new curriculum. Manon said that 
they need to have consistency with the other AoLE and to develop the curriculum, trial and change 
mindsets by focusing in the 4 Purposes. Welsh Government would be developing, trialling and 
sharing ideas. There are a variety of people who will challenge pioneer schools. A member asked 
Manon who would retrain teachers. Manon informed WASACRE that colleagues in Welsh 

Page 21



Government were going to work with teacher trainers and teachers who are in the profession already. 
This raised the issue of who would fund teacher training, hiring venues and promote events. 

 WASACRE should gather evidence that Agreed Syllabuses are not being adhered to:- 
o There was a concern expressed by a member that headteachers may just say they were complying. 

o It was suggested that perhaps heads of department and challenge advisors could be an avenue to 
collect evidence. 

o There would be an opportunity to ask them when lead practitioners meet. 

o Collecting of evidence would be too time consuming and may not change anything. 

o WASACRE members were cautious about going down this route as most schools have a good 
relationship with SACRE. If WASACRE is required to collect evidence then WASACRE may be 
seen to be policing the curriculum and could affect the positive relationship we currently have 
with schools. 

o A suggestion mooted by a member was SACREs host a meeting of HODs to show SACRE 
support. 

o It was pointed out that non-compliance could be an issue for primary schools too. 

 We must ensure in the new curriculum that RE has parity with History and Geography and that it is 
delivered by specialists. 

 WASACRE were informed that a member was aware of a school that is ‘trying out Donaldson’. They 
have already started with Year 7 and other schools have visited as an example of good practice and 
are now using it in their schools. Manon Jones was asked whether she was aware of the schools that 
are pioneering and whether there is good model. Manon said that she appreciates the feedback she is 
getting at the WASACRE meeting and that she will bear it in mind and pass it on. 

 There was a discussion about whether there might be an opportunity to visit a Caerphilly schoolas a 
case study to see how RE is being re-visioned. A discussion on the protocol for doing this took place. 
Some members pointed out that it was local SACREs and not WASACRE who should visit schools. 

Action: VT to discuss this in Caerphilly SACRE. 
Action: Agenda the issue of training at the next Exec meeting. 

8. Cyflwyniad NAPfRE / NAPfRE presentation: 

Addysgu Addysg Grefyddol o fewn cwricwlwm y Dyniaethau/ Teaching Religious Education within a 
Humanities curriculum –Sharon Perry Phillips 

Sharon Perry-Phillips, Head of RE at Monmouth Comprehensive School presented her experiences of 
teaching RE within a humanities based curriculum for the past 9 years which is in line with Donaldson. She 
suggested there are lessons to be learnt as we approach Successful Futures. The school produced a skills 
based integrated curriculum and skills became dominant over range and they became a driving force of 
learning. Five themes were identified, including research skills. The aim was explicitly develop these skills. 
It was a cross curricular, skills based and ‘Donaldsonesque’ curriculum. Welsh Baccalaureate and the 
Advanced Welsh Baccalaureate were also an integral feature. Humanities became a fully integrated 
department and each class had a very different experience of Religious Education. There was evidence of this 
from the parents of twins in the school. There was the realisation that RE fits everywhere and the links were 
easy to make. Assessments were flexible, but at least three per year had a concrete RE element. The approach 
was student centred and student driven. A strength of this approach 8 was that you got to know your students 
very well. Estyn commented that the approach had revitalised teaching strategies. For RE this approach 
meant that collaboration was fantastic and teachers developed an appreciation of sister subjects. As an RE 

Page 22



specialist teacher, Sharon, who had previously taught multiple classes of RE for one hour a week, it was 
good to teach them more often. Good relationships were built and the uptake for RE improved. Sharon 
reported, however, that the negative impact on RE from non-specialism was phenomenal. She witnessed a 
significant knowledge deficit in RE by Year 8. The ratio of RE teachers was tiny in comparison to History 
and Geography, so RE took the brunt of the deficit. The school noted teacher bias was inevitable as people 
play to their strengths. After a number of years using this curriculum model, in Jan 2015 they reverted to 
teaching the subjects separately. And in Feb 2015 Successful Futures was introduced. Sharon reported that, 
in her experience, this way of teaching was ‘death to Humanities’. Reverting back had had a positive effect 
and they are much happier having discrete terms to develop discrete skills. Sharon reported that RE had not 
been taught in the same way by non-specialists. For instance, she was frustrated that in the last two years no 
one had asked to borrow Sikh artefacts and not once had a visit been arranged. It produced a ‘grab and run 
type of teaching.’ She suggested that if they had to think again there would need to be investment time and 
non-specialist staff training. There should be embedded Inset. Additionally there should be consistency of 
staffing, ownership and collaborate planning. Sharon argued that schemes of work and resources, etc. would 
not matter if you didn’t invest in staff. She also recommended that there should be a balance between skills 
and subjects. Subject specialism must be retained at KS3. The integrated curriculum at Monmouthshire 
Comprehensive was in line with Successful Futures. She warned that unless we are really careful with RE it 
will be it and not History or Geography that will lose out. 

Questions included: 

If you had a choice would you prefer not to go down the Donaldson Approach? 

Sharon said that subject specialism was lost and she would ‘bite your hand off not to go down that road’. 
You get much better RE via a specialism. GV reported that she has seen amazing and inspiring RE that is in 
Monmouth Comprehensive School. She felt very strongly that if Sharon and her specialist team could not 
deliver that it would be a real shame. Sharon said that another problem encountered in the Humanities 
approach was that there was little time to engage pupils and inspire them to take RS at GCSE. Teachers of 
humanities would inevitably sell their own subject and it is the love of your subject that inspires people. The 
school has now replaced an integrated approach with a modular approach though they still attempt to cross 
link schemes. Sharon said that under the integrated scheme RE was being taught like History’s said that 
subject skills are important as the cross curricular skills and asked where that fits into Donaldson. Manon 
Jones said that the disciplines will remain and that it had been definitely worthwhile to listen to the talk given 
by Sharon. VT stated that it was good to end the talk on a positive note and she appreciated Sharon’s honesty 
in her feedback. She expressed concern that KS4 is content laden and that some of that now has to be 
covered at KS3. At the WJEC training event Sharon said that she felt as overwhelmed as she had ever been. 
She felt fortunate to have 5 hours a fortnight to cover the GCSE course but she was aware that other staff 
didn’t have that. PL noted that he has taught in schools with no subject specialists and that it was very 
difficult to inspire non-specialist staff. He recalled that he had had to plan all of the lessons to ensure 
engagement and progression from KS3 to 4 

9. Diweddariadau/Up-dates: 
 Canllawiauar Reoli Hawl Tynnu'nôl o Addysg Grefyddol/ Guidance on Managing the Right of 

Withdrawal from Religious Education 

Gill Vaisey has made progress with the document. The main development has been as a result of a 
presentation from Shaun Evans- Pask from Untethered Limited who presented to the Executive 
Committee on 1st Feb 2017on issues around withdrawal from religious education. He has since 
provided a section to go into the document. GV has now written a section on each of the major world 
faiths in order to minimise withdrawal. The document is at the proofreading stage and will soon go to 
translation. GV has had to go back to WG on an issue with 10/94 that needs clarification. 

Page 23



 Ymarferwyr Arweiniol/Lead Practitioners 

We now know who the Lead Practitioners are and what schools they belong to. WASACRE could 
have a presentation from consortia in the south during its Autumn Term meeting in Bridgend. This 
would be another opportunity to put them in contact with one another. 

 Materion Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government matters – 
o Cyswllt Newydd/New Contact – David Heath 

o Cyfarfod Llywodraeth Cymru/ Welsh Government contact meeting – 16/1/2017& 14/12/16 

WASACRE have met with Welsh Government five times in the last term and a half. This included a 
meeting between Phil Lord, Libby Jones, David Heath and Abi Williams in Colwyn Bay. It is 
encouraging that David Heath was so knowledgeable and enthusiastic about RE. Regular meetings 
will be held in the future. WASACRE will also be meeting Welsh Government concerning the new 
curriculum. WASACRE are sharing with Welsh Government the issues we are concerned about such 
as legislation, withdrawal, Humanist representation on SACREs, the collection of annual reports, 
Circular 10/94and that schools should still be following the Agreed Syllabus. 

SACRE Annual Reports should be sent to Abi Williams: Abigail.Williams@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
WASACRE have a meeting on the 27th March with Welsh Government. 
Action: LJ to follow up which reports are missing. 

10. Adroddiadargyfarfod y PwyllgorGwaith a gynhaliwydar1 Chwefror 2017 / Report from the Executive 
Committee held on 1February 2017 

Items: - 
Members were reminded that faith representatives for the Church in Wales on SACRE were 
concerned with issues relating to the agreed syllabus rather than SACRE discussing issues relating to 
the CiW own RE curriculum for VA schools. 

Shaun Evans-Pask – Untethered Limited – Identity based incidents. Very interesting and schools will be 
receiving this training.  In light of the work that GV has done on the Withdrawal Document which has been 
very time consuming a discussion was had on whether WASACRE should pay for this in the future. If so it 
would be necessary to develop a protocol that fits with our aims. 

MM proposed and EE seconded the motion - Is it the will of WASACRE that we can employ and use the 
expertise of consultants to pay them for their time? 

11. Gohebiaeth /Correspondence 
i. Peter Hemming- Invitation to a free seminar on ‘Religious Diversity in the Primary school’, 30th March at 
Cardiff University. WASACRE have a place reserved and LJ will attend. 

ii. Harkirat Singh- Sikh Education Service. Based in Northampton, offering workshops and visits to schools 
in Wales and hoping to make links with Wales. 

iii. Members asked if the workshops are available bilingually and what do we know about the service. Neeta 
Baicher offered to look into this further and liaise with LJ. 

iv. Commission on RE in England- Evidence gathering. Phil Lord’s name has been put forward as a link for 
this. It is an England matter and members have already agreed not to take part. 

v. Welsh Government colleague David Heath. Response regarding agreed syllabus for RE and assessment. 

vi. The Baha’i Community in Wales wished WASACRE a joyful greeting for the forthcoming Baha’i New 
Year on20th March. This is a special year for the community as it is the bicentenary of the founder Bah 
aullah which will be celebrated in October. 

Page 24



vii. WASACRE received correspondence from Matthew Vince, a doctoral student at Cardiff University’s 
Centre for the Study of Islam – UK. He is exploring Islam in RE in state schools. Matthew is a trained RE 
teacher. He is interested in coming along to SACRE/WASACRE to build a network between ourselves and 
the university. It was decided that GV speak with him and discuss him attending Cardiff SACRE in the first 
instance. 

viii. Wendy Dossett sent WASACRE information about three study days of teachers being held at the 
University of Chester. They are not board specific but would be useful to teachers of WJEC A Level. They 
are on Philosophy and Ethics, Buddhism and Christianity. The workshops are intended to give a back to 
university experience. Details are available on the University Website. PW will be attending two of the 
workshops. 

12. U.F.A. /A.O.B. 

1. Humanism - book has gone to all schools. Sharon Perry-Phillips reported that it is very useful and that the 
Humanist Association has been very helpful with the content of the GCSE. It is in pupil speak and helpful for 
the GCSE. She informed WASACRE that for delivering Hinduism at GCSE and for Life and Death 
Thornhill Crematorium in Cardiff are providing Cultural Tours 

2. The AREIAC Annual Conference is taking place in York on 3rd – 4th July. Day 1 focuses on assessment 
and progression and Day 2 on curriculum development and working with faith communities. The conference 
is open to bookings from AREIAC members and non- members. For more information please contact the 
conference organizer Gill Vaisey. 

13. Dyddiad y cyfarfodnesaf / Date for next meeting:7Gorffennaf 2017, Wrecsam/ 7 July 2017, Wrexham. 
Dyddiadaucyfarfodyddyn y dyfodol / Future meeting dates: Autumn 2017, Bridgend; Spring 2018, 
Swansea 

Page 25



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

DATE:           JULY 4th 2017

REPORT TO:          STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL FOR RELIGIOUS 
         EDUCATION

PURPOSE:           EXECUTIVE VOTING 2017 -2020

NOMINATIONS FOR THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (7 July 2017)

There are TWO nominations for TWO positions on the Executive Committee.

1. Alison Lewis Swansea SACRE

I am a Swansea University Philosophy graduate and mother of two boys. I have served as Head of 
the Religious Education Department at Cefn Hengoed Community School in Swansea since 2001. 
On arrival my mission was to turn the department around by ensuring that every pupil at Cefn 
Hengoed had the opportunity to study a subject that could not only provide them with an important 
GCSE qualification, but one that is so rich in essential life skills. So, despite having only 2 hours per 
fortnight on the curriculum, I tailored the GCSE course to allow it to be taught under these 
constraints and became the first non-denominational school in Wales to have full cohort entry for 
GCSE Religious Studies, including every pupil in our Specialist Teaching Facility. 

My department has gone from strength to strength, and in a time when subject hours are being cut 
across the curriculum, I have been proactive in securing more curriculum time to provide pupils with 
well–rounded and balanced religious education, abundant in skills and values essential for life as 
young adults. I am proud that RE is recognised as a valuable subject in my school but I understand 
that this is not the same everywhere, and feel that part of my work is to ensure that RE is given its 
rightful place in all schools. A ‘token gesture’ approach to RE is not enough; it is vital that statutory 
obligations are adhered to and meaningful RE is being taught across all schools in Wales.

During my teaching career to date, I have been a WJEC examiner of GCSE Religious Studies and 
was selected to work alongside Gavin Craigen as moderator for levelling standardisation in 
Religious Education in 2012. I have also served on the Swansea SACRE for many years as Vice 
Chair and now Chairperson, and have represented my SACRE at WASACRE conferences.

In addition to my full time teaching commitment, I am currently working with ERW as a Lead 
Practitioner for Religious Education. My role is to equip teachers of RE with the skills, knowledge 
and resources necessary to teach the new ‘GCSE Specification in RS 2017’, to prepare for the new 
qualification through setting up network meetings and create collaboration opportunities as well as 
creating resources on the Welsh Government’s digital platform, Hwb, for colleagues in Wales. I 
have presented the Lead Practitioner’s progress at recent network, SACRE and WJEC 
conferences.  

I have been a part of Literacy and Numeracy pilot projects in my school and have shared good 
practice amongst colleagues in network meetings. I will soon be developing aspects of the 
Donaldson approach on Digital Competency through RE by collaborating with IT specialists to 
produce Moodle courses for the new Specification for RS using Hwb. 

I believe that my experience will allow me to make a valuable contribution to the WASACRE 
Executive Committee and I would find it a privilege to serve, for the good of my subject and 
colleagues in Wales.

Page 26



2. Gill Vaisey Monmouthshire SACRE

Gill Vaisey is a qualified teacher and Religious Education Consultant specialising in primary and 
early years education.  After studying for her B.Ed. Hons Degree, with Religious Studies as her 
specialist subject, she taught primary age children before taking up a post as Advisory Teacher for 
Religious Education in Gwent followed by a similar post with Mid Glamorgan.  Since 1996, Gill has 
been a successful freelance consultant providing training and support for LAs, Dioceses and 
schools across Wales and England and is now a nationally known figure in the UK for her work with 
RE and Early Years children. 

Gill is the professional consultant to Blaenau Gwent, Monmouthshire and Cardiff SACREs and until 
recently also supported the Vale of Glamorgan and Rhondda Cynon Taf SACREs.

Relevant experiences include:
 An active member of the Welsh Association of SACREs since its inception and currently an 

Executive Member;

 Providing professional expertise to Blaenau Gwent and Monmouthshire SACREs since 1996 
and to Cardiff SACRE since 2014;

 Writing Agreed Syllabuses for RE and accompanying comprehensive teachers’ support, 
planning and assessment material for several Local Authorities in Wales;

 Regular training and consultancy for primary teachers and Early Years practitioners across both 
Wales and England;

 Providing training and advice to Local Authorities and Church Dioceses across Wales and 
England; 

 A member of the National Advisory Panel for Religious Education, of which she was chairperson 
for three years;

 Producing Key Stage 1 books and teachers’ resources commissioned by ACCAC;

 Direct involvement and support with various DfES projects;

 Producing and publishing free and purchasable resources (Books at Press) to support the 
Foundation Phase Curriculum in Wales, the EYFS and KS1 curriculum in England and the 
Curriculum for Excellence in Scotland;

 Close links with a wide range of faith communities and individual representatives;

 A member of the UK Association of RE Advisers, Inspectors and Consultants (AREIAC) and 
currently executive committee member representing Wales and regularly providing seminars for 
its members;

 WASACRE representative on the REC (Religious Education Council for England and Wales);

 Attended 2016 EFTRE (European forum for Teachers of RE) conference in Vienna;

 Represented WASACRE at EFTRE Board Meeting in Athens, April 2017;

 Attended meeting with Kirsty Williams and other Welsh Government Officials, March 2017, as 
part of the NAPfRE delegation of representatives;

 Actively working with NAPfRE members to support the Pioneer Schools in the development of 
the RE element of the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience; and 

 Attending Welsh Government convened meetings with the Pioneer Schools Network.   

The ethos behind Gill’s consultancy is to promote and support excellence in religious education in 
schools and educational establishments.  

Page 27



NOMINATIONS FOR THE POSITION OF VICE CHAIR FOR THE WALES 
ASSOCIATION OF SACRES (7 JULY 2017)

1. Councillor Ernie Galsworthy  Merthyr Tudfil SACRE

I have been a SACRE member since May 2012 after I was elected to council. I was previously a 
councillor from 1987 until 2004, and served on Merthyr Tydfil SACRE during this period and also 
attended WASACRE meetings. 

I was brought up in a Welsh Baptist environment and until the age of 5 lived with my grandmother, a 
Welsh speaker, who unfortunately did not teach Welsh to my mother although, did her best to teach 
me. Consequently after her death I lost the language and did not pick it back up again until the late 
1990’s when I attended a WPLAN course at Cardiff University. 

I hold pacifist views and my great heroes are Mahatma Gandhi, John Lennon and Jesus Christ, All 
three were pacifists and met violent deaths. Being a pacifist is a dangerous way of living and 
sometimes courage is needed to live this life. 

I am also the council representative on the Committee of Nuclear Free Local Authorities which I 
believe reflects how I wish to live in peace. 

My three heroes were a Hindu, an atheist and a Christian. While I do not believe totally in the views 
of my heroes I have great respect for them and it is respect for all religions which I believe is 
fundamental for world peace.

2. Gill Vaisey Monmouthshire SACRE

Gill Vaisey is a qualified teacher and Religious Education Consultant specialising in primary and 
early years education.  After studying for her B.Ed. Hons Degree, with Religious Studies as her 
specialist subject, she taught primary age children before taking up a post as Advisory Teacher for 
Religious Education in Gwent followed by a similar post with Mid Glamorgan.  Since 1996, Gill has 
been a successful freelance consultant providing training and support for LAs, Dioceses and 
schools across Wales and England and is now a nationally known figure in the UK for her work with 
RE and Early Years children. 

Gill is the professional consultant to Blaenau Gwent, Monmouthshire and Cardiff SACREs and until 
recently also supported the Vale of Glamorgan and Rhondda Cynon Taf SACREs.

Relevant experiences include:

 An active member of the Welsh Association of SACREs since its inception and currently an 
Executive Member;

 Providing professional expertise to Blaenau Gwent and Monmouthshire SACREs since 1996 
and to Cardiff SACRE since 2014;

 Writing Agreed Syllabuses for RE and accompanying comprehensive teachers’ support, 
planning and assessment material for several Local Authorities in Wales;

 Regular training and consultancy for primary teachers and Early Years practitioners across both 
Wales and England;

 Providing training and advice to Local Authorities and Church Dioceses across Wales and 
England; 

 A member of the National Advisory Panel for Religious Education, of which she was chairperson 
for three years;

 Producing Key Stage 1 books and teachers’ resources commissioned by ACCAC;

Page 28



 Direct involvement and support with various DfES projects;
 Producing and publishing free and purchasable resources (Books at Press) to support the 

Foundation Phase Curriculum in Wales, the EYFS and KS1 curriculum in England and the 
Curriculum for Excellence in Scotland;

 Close links with a wide range of faith communities and individual representatives;

 A member of the UK Association of RE Advisers, Inspectors and Consultants (AREIAC) and 
currently executive committee member representing Wales and regularly providing seminars for 
its members;

 WASACRE representative on the REC (Religious Education Council for England and Wales);

 Attended 2016 EFTRE (European forum for Teachers of RE) conference in Vienna;

 Represented WASACRE at EFTRE Board Meeting in Athens, April 2017;

 Attended meeting with Kirsty Williams and other Welsh Government Officials, March 2017, as 
part of the NAPfRE delegation of representatives;

 Actively working with NAPfRE members to support the Pioneer Schools in the development of 
the RE element of the Humanities Area of Learning and Experience; and 

 Attending Welsh Government convened meetings with the Pioneer Schools Network.   

The ethos behind Gill’s consultancy is to promote and support excellence in religious education in 
schools and educational establishments.  

Gill would like the opportunity to support WASACRE as Vice Chair during this important period of 
curriculum development and change. 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Welcome to new Members including an outline of the roles and responsibilities of SACRE
	6 Minutes of previous meeting held on 7th March 2017 at Trelewis Primary School
	Minutes

	9 Revised Criteria for GCSE and GCE Specifications:  Update
	10 National Curriculum Review and Assessment:  Update
	11 Estyn Update (Oral Update)
	12 WASACRE Issues:

